
STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

DISTRICT ATTORNEYS COUNCIL 
421 NW 13

TH
 ST, SUITE 290  OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73103-3710 

 
EXECUTIVE FINANCE GRANTS VICTIMS MIS 

405-264-5000 405-264-5004 405-264-5008 405-264-5006 405-264-5002 

FAX 405-264-5099 405-264-5099 405-264-5095 405-264-5097 405-264-5099 

 

SUZANNE McCLAIN ATWOOD 
Executive Coordinator 

 
TRENT H. BAGGETT 

Assistant Executive Coordinator 

 

 

 

 

1 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

NOVEMBER 2, 2016, AT 10:00 A.M. 
DISTRICT ATTORNEYS COUNCIL 
421 N.W. 13TH STREET, SUITE 125 

OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 

 
 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mike Fields at 10:09 a.m.  The following Council members 
were present:  District Attorney Mike Fields, District Attorney Kevin Buchanan, First Assistant 
Attorney General Mike Hunter, and District Attorney Greg Mashburn.  It was noted there was a 
quorum present. 
 
2) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH OPEN MEETING ACT 

 
It was noted the agenda had been properly posted and the office of the Secretary of State notified. 
Written notice was provided to the Secretary of State on November 10, 2015.  Annie Daniel posted 
the amended agenda on October 28, 2016, at 10:30 a.m. at Council Headquarters, 421 N.W. 13th 
Street, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.  

 
3) INTRODUCTIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood announced the Criminal Law Luncheon was being held that day at 
12:00 p.m. at the Petroleum Club.  She encouraged everyone to attend.  Ms. Atwood also an-
nounced a press conference that was being held at the Fraternal Order of Police at 1:30 p.m. re-
garding State Question 780.  Ms. Atwood then informed that the new DAConnect, now called 
DART Board, will be launching that day.  A demo will be available at the Fall Conference. 
 
The following District Attorneys were present: Brian Hermanson, Angela Marsee, Chris Boring, 
Ken Darby, Fred Smith, Chuck Sullivan, Chris Ross (entered the meeting late), Jason Hicks, Max 



 

2 

Cook, Brian Kuester, Emily Redman, Orvil Loge, Jeff Smith, and Rex Duncan.  Others in attend-
ance: Lori Carter, Dennis Smith, and Tyler Talley, eCapitol. The following DAC staff were also 
present: Suzanne McClain Atwood, Bud Webster, Annie Daniel, Christiana Burgess, Trent Bag-
gett, David Bebber, Stephanie Lowery, and Amy Bruce. 
 
Ms. Atwood introduced Lori Carter as the new Legislative Liaison for the Attorney General’s office 
and welcomed her.  She also recognized Dennis Smith as a former Chair of the District Attorneys 
Council, retired now, and welcomed him also. 
 
4) APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 15, 2016, REGULAR MEETING 
 
A motion was made by Kevin Buchanan and seconded by Greg Mashburn to approve the minutes 
from the September 15, 2016 regular meeting.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Hunter, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
5) APPOINTMENT OF POLICE CHIEF REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE JAG BOARD  
 
Stephanie Lowery announced that there is a vacancy on the JAG Board for Police Chief Repre-
sentative after Chief Chuck Foley retired.  Chief Phil Cotton submitted three names for considera-
tion; however, Chief Investigator George Haralson was Chief Foley’s designee on the JAG Board 
and the Oklahoma Association of Chiefs of Police would like him to continue to serve on the JAG 
Board as its new representative.  A motion was made by Greg Mashburn and seconded by Kevin 
Buchanan to appoint George Haralson to the JAG Board as the Police Chief Representative.  The 
motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Hunter, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
6) APPOINTMENT OF THE SHERIFF REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE FORENSICE SCIENCES 

IMPROVEMENT TASK FORCE  
 
Stephanie Lowery announced that Sheriff Ron Lockhart from Sequoyah County has stepped down 
from this position.  Ray McNair, Executive Director of the Sheriffs Association, was asked to sub-
mit three names for consideration and had only one person who showed interest in this position, 
Sheriff Rob Seale of LeFlore County.  Ms. Lowery mentioned that Mr. McNair felt like the lack of 
interest was because others were under the impression that they would need an extensive back-
ground in forensic science.  
 
A motion was made by Kevin Buchanan and seconded by Greg Mashburn to select Rob Seale for 
as the Sheriff Representative for the Forensic Sciences Improvement Task Force.  The motion car-
ried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Hunter, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 
 

 

7) REPORT FROM TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE  



 

3 

 
Brian Hermanson deferred to the ones who reported in the Technology Committee meeting that 
day for updates: 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood stated that she informed the Committee that she had been contacted 
by Roger Thompson, who is conducting a review of IT unification in the state.  She and Trent 
Baggett met with him at his request.  He asked a number of questions as it related to the DAs and 
also asked Ms. Atwood to present to an Interim Study scheduled for November 14th.  She is wait-
ing for further information as to what he will want her to share.  Unification has not yet happened 
for DAC; however, the newly proposed service agreement dramatically changes the structure of IT 
services.  She and Bud Webster have requested additional information regarding the proposed 
cost of services. 
 
Ms. Atwood also reported that after evaluation of costs surrounding JustWare, the Technology 
Committee recommended the user fee per user for the Attorney General’s office be raised to 
$1,629.44 for FY18.  The Technology Committee approved this recommendation to the Council.   
 
Trent Baggett updated the Council on the personal identifiers on court documents.  He reviewed 
the documents that will no longer be viewable on the internet, including arrest warrant, bench 
warrant, search warrant, wildlife tickets, traffic tickets, and others.  He said that sites such as 
NCIC are not included in this order.  He encouraged everyone to look at the Court of Criminal 
Appeals directive and the SCAD.  (See attachments.) 
 
A motion was made by Greg Mashburn and seconded by Kevin Buchanan to recommend to the 
Attorney General’s office that the user fee for IT services be set at $1,629.44 per user for FY18. 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  Hunter 

 
8) OKLAHOMA LAW ENFORCEMENT INCIDENT SUBMISSION SOLICITATION  
 
David Bebber reported that the OKLEIS solicitation closed as of November 1st.  Evaluations will 
begin on November 7th and the timeline looks like it will proceed as scheduled.  Mr. Bebber stated 
that only one application was received.  
 
No action was taken. 
 
9) REVIEWAND UPDATE ON OKLAHOMA COURT OF CRIMINAL APPEALS ORDER RE-

LATING TO PERSONAL IDENTIFIERS ON COURT DOCUMENTS  
 
Trent Baggett covered this in item number 7. 
 
No action was taken. 
  
10) REVIEW AND POSSIBLE UPDATE TO CRITICAL NEEDS REQUEST AND FY18 BUDGET 

REQUEST  
 
Bud Webster informed the Council that the request has been submitted, as approved at the last 
Council meeting.  Brian Kuester submitted a revised request for his district after it had been 
submitted.  Mr. Webster stated that we can advise the Committees of the change in that number 
when we present at our budget hearing. 



 

4 

 
No action was taken. 
 
11) REQUEST TO RECEIVE DONATION FROM DISTRICT 12  
 
District 12 requested to receive a donation from the Cherokee Nation in the approximate amount 
of $1,000.00 to purchase forensic equipment.   
 
A motion was made by Greg Mashburn and seconded by Kevin Buchanan to approve the request. 
The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Hunter, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 
 

12) REQUEST TO RECEIVE DONATION FROM THE CHICKASAW NATION TO FUND AN 
ADDITIONAL ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY POSITION  
 

District 22 requested to receive a donation in the amount of $60,000 from the Chickasaw Nation 
to partially fund an Assistant District Attorney position.  This is a donation that Mr. Ross receives 
every year.   
 
A motion was made by Greg Mashburn and seconded by Kevin Buchanan to approve the request. 
The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Hunter, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
13) DISTRICT ATTORNEY NARRATIVE FOR PARDON AND PAROLE BOARD 

 
The new form is being tested in District 23 and is ready to be adopted if the Council wishes to do 
so.  The old and new forms were available as handouts. (See attachments.)  Kevin Buchanan 
moved to postpone consideration to the December meeting to allow time for review by districts 
and to allow Mr. Smothermon to address the changes.  There was no second or vote on this mo-
tion.  Mike Fields stated it would be postponed until the December meeting. 
 
14) CONSIDERATION OF JEANNE LESTER V. STATE OF OKLAHOMA, EX REL., THE DE-

PARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES, AND THE DISTRICT ATTORNEYS COUNCIL 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood advised the Council that agenda items 14 and 15 are similar, so both 
were discussed under this agenda item.  During the child support negotiations last year, District 
21’s contract was terminated and was not renewed, resulting in several of Greg Mashburn’s em-
ployees not being retained.  These lawsuits are a result of that.  Kari Hawkins with the Attorney 
General’s office is representing DAC.  Ms. Atwood stated that it is DAC’s and the Attorney Gen-
eral’s office’s position that DAC is not an appropriate party to the lawsuit since the Council has no 
hiring or terminating authority.  Risk Management has been notified. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
15) CONSIDERATION OF RICHARD STEVENS V. STATE OF OKLAHOMA, EX REL., THE 

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES, AND THE DISTRICT ATTORNEYS COUNCIL 



 

5 

 
This was covered under item 14. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
16) PUBLIC RELATIONS PLAN AND DAC STAFF UPDATE  
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood announced the new division at DAC, Training and Outreach.  The divi-
sion will be headed by Meagan Conway and the training positions at DAC will be part of that 
team.  Ms. Atwood presented a new DAC Organizational Chart to the Council.  Ms. Atwood ex-
pressed her excitement about the success this new division has already achieved.  
 
No action was taken. 
 
17) REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COORDINATOR  
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood extended her gratitude to Farley Ward for his many years of service.  
Mr. Ward recently announced his retirement.  She also welcomed and introduced Chuck Sullivan, 
who is the new District Attorney in District 18.  
 
Ms. Atwood reported on HB3146, which took effect on Tuesday, November 1st.  Trent Baggett in-
formed the Council that as of Tuesday, DUIs will no longer go through courts not of record.  One 
quarter of the costs will now go to the municipality of the arresting officer and one quarter will go 
to the District Attorney’s Office in which it is filed.  Mr. Baggett suggested keeping track of how 
many DUIs each District Court had before the passing of this bill, and how many each will have 
after the passing of this bill.  
 
Ms. Atwood announced the Fall Conference and summarized the schedule of events.  She also 
announced the JustWare Conference for key personnel, scheduled November 30th and December 
1st.  She encouraged all to send staff for training.  
 
Ms. Atwood then shared her meetings and events report, sharing key events since late August. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
18) NEW BUSINESS NOT KNOWN 24 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING  
 
Ms. Atwood acknowledged Chris Ross’ retirement announcement.  No vote was taken. 
 
19) ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mike Fields adjourned the meeting at 11:11 a.m.  No vote was taken. 



STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

DISTRICT ATTORNEYS COUNCIL 
421 NW 13

TH
 ST, SUITE 290  OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73103-3710 

 
EXECUTIVE FINANCE GRANTS VICTIMS MIS 

405-264-5000 405-264-5004 405-264-5008 405-264-5006 405-264-5002 

FAX 405-264-5099 405-264-5099 405-264-5095 405-264-5097 405-264-5099 

 

SUZANNE McCLAIN ATWOOD 
Executive Coordinator 

 
TRENT H. BAGGETT 

Assistant Executive Coordinator 

 

 

 

 

1 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2016, AT 10:00 A.M. 
DISTRICT ATTORNEYS COUNCIL 
421 N.W. 13TH STREET, SUITE 125 

OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 

 
 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mike Fields at 10:01 a.m. 
 
2) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH OPEN MEETING ACT 

 
It was noted the agenda had been properly posted and the office of the Secretary of State notified. 
Written notice was provided to the Secretary of State on November 10, 2015.  Annie Daniel posted 
the amended agenda on September 13, 2016, at 11:30 a.m. at Council Headquarters, 421 N.W. 13th 
Street, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.  

 
3) INTRODUCTIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood stated there were no announcements.  Introductions were as follows: 
 
The following District Attorneys were present: Brian Hermanson, Mike Boring, Angela Marsee, 
Steve Kunzweiler (entered the meeting during agenda item 6), Chris Boring, Ken Darby, Fred 
Smith, and Rex Duncan.  Others in attendance: Michael Neylon, Federal Bureau of Investigations, 
Tim Turner, Task Force Agent, District 18, Chuck Sullivan, First Assistant District Attorney, Dis-
trict 18, Travis White, Oklahoma Bureau of Narcotics, Tyler Talley, eCapitol, Brett Sebastian, 
Journal Record and Barbara Hoberock, Tulsa World.  The following DAC staff were also present: 
Suzanne McClain Atwood, Bud Webster, Annie Daniel, Christiana Burgess, Trent Baggett, and 
David Bebber. 
 



 

2 

4) APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF AUGUST 18, 2016, REGULAR MEETING 
 
A motion was made by Kevin Buchanan and seconded by Greg Mashburn to approve the minutes 
from the August 18, 2016 regular meeting.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Hunter, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  Prater 

 
5) APPROVAL OF EXPERT WITNESS FEE, DISTRICT 14 – SUZANNE MCCLAIN ATWOOD 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood stated that all materials could be found in the agenda packet regarding 
the request for Shawn Roberson, Ph.D., as an expert witness in District 14.  A motion was made by 
David Prater to approve the expert witness fee request as submitted and seconded by Kevin Bu-
chanan.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Prater, Hunter, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
6) PRESENTATION, DISCUSSION, AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING THE FBI CJIS 

NATIONAL DATA EXCHANGE PROGRAM – MICHAEL P.NEYLON, FBI CJIS N-DEX 
PROGRAM 

 
Suzanne McClain Atwood introduced Michael P. Neylon, with the Criminal Justice Information 
Services Division in Clarkesburg, West Virginia.  Mr. Neylon delivered a presentation regarding 
the National Data Exchange Program (N-DEx), a national information sharing system that ena-
bles criminal justice agencies to search, link, and analyze local, state, tribal, and federal records.  
Mr. Neylon showed a short video, then a powerpoint.  Many benefits of the N-DEx program were 
discussed, including the nature of records kept within the database and the fact that it is offered 
at no-cost to participants.  Chris Boring asked if the search in N-DEx would take the place of the 
Triple-I search already being conducted within his offices.  Mr. Neylon said no, it would not take 
the place of that.  But with specially granted permissions, an N-DEx search would perform the 
Triple-I search at the same time.  If the searches are performed separately, the N-DEx search 
would be supplemental to the Triple-I search, as it would contain information the Triple-I search 
would not.  Mike Boring asked if the N-DEx search would be supplemental to the deconfliction 
process already being used in his office.  Mr. Neylon stated that this would help in a collaborative 
way by connecting agencies that might be looking into the same individual.  Greg Mashburn 
asked how he could get access, whether it would be on an individual basis or if it would be as a 
system.  Mr. Neylon stated that it could be done either way.  Mr. Neylon concluded by offering to 
share additional information after the meeting with anyone interested who was with a criminal 
justice agency.   
 
A motion was made by Greg Mashburn and seconded by Kevin Buchanan for DAC to begin dis-
cussion on how they could implement a system-wide participation with the N-DEx system.  The 
motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Prater, Hunter, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 
 

7) ROLL CALL 



 

3 

 
CHAIR MIKE FIELDS NOTED ROLL HAD NOT BEEN CALLED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 
MEETING.  The following Council members were present:  District Attorney Mike Fields, District 
Attorney Kevin Buchanan, District Attorney David Prater, First Assistant Attorney General Mike 
Hunter, and District Attorney Greg Mashburn.  The Chair noted all members were present from 
the time the meeting was called to order. 
 

8) ALLOCATION OF FY17 RETURNED FUNDS – BUD WEBSTER 
 

Bud Webster stated that DAC started out with an FY16 state appropriation of approximately $38.8 
million.  In the first part of the year, DAC received a 3% reduction, then later received a 4% reduc-
tion.  By the end of the year, DAC’s appropriation was down to $36.1 million.  At the beginning of 
2016, the budget was reduced another $1.6 million, making the starting appropriation for FY17 ap-
proximately $34.4 million. 
 
Mr. Webster advised that DAC has been notified by the Oklahoma Management and Enterprise 
Services that they will receive $1,002,226.60. Based on previous Council action, Bud has prepared 
an allocation returning funds to districts as they were taken away.  [See attached.]  
 
A motion was made by David Prater and seconded by Greg Mashburn to approve the allocation of 
returned funds in the manner in which they were taken from districts as presented in the attach-
ment.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Prater, Hunter, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
9) APPROVAL OF FY18 BUDGET REQUEST 

 
Bud Webster stated that, pursuant to Council direction, he has prepared a proposed budget re-
quest for FY18 based on a critical needs assessment prepared by each district.  The total for critical 
needs from each district equals $11,472,284.00.  The necessary appropriation totals$46,337,180.60, 
which is the critical needs total added to the $34,864,896.00 that DAC currently has.   
 
David Prater stated the Council should carefully consider how the funds would be distributed 
with regards to the critical needs submitted from each district to Mr. Webster.  Mr. Prater is con-
cerned the funds will be put back into the formula that has always been used and each district will 
not get the amount they requested.  He suggested that the Council may need to start rethinking 
how it distributes the money in the future.  Suzanne McClain Atwood stated that Mr. Prater’s 
concerns are duly noted and that the position of the Council thus far has been to allocate money 
as it was taken away until DAC reaches the $42 million dollar starting point it once had.   
 
After discussion, Mr. Prater moved to request $45 million.  The motion was seconded by Kevin 
Buchanan.  Before a vote was taken, Ms. Atwood asked for clarification.  After discussion,  Mr. 
Prater’s motion and Mr. Buchanan’s second was amended to say that DAC would submit a request 
for FY18 to the appropriations total of $46,337,180.60.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Prater, Hunter, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
 



 

4 

10) REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COORDINATOR – SUZANNE MCCLAIN ATWOOD 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood shared with the Council a thank you letter from the Oklahoma County 
Family Justice Center to the Victims of Crime Advocates Board regarding Camp Hope.  David 
Prater shared some information about the Family Justice Center, which is modeled after the one 
in San Diego.  Mr. Prater stated that it is an opportunity to provide all the services necessary to at-
risk families who are dealing with child abuse, domestic abuse and other issues in one location.  
Camp Hope is one of those services.  Mr. Prater gave credit to Oklahoma City Police Chief Bill 
City and Kim Garrett for the great work that is being done.  Ms. Atwood stated that it is exciting 
to see prosecutors engaged in this kind of work.  
 
Ms. Atwood then notified the District Attorneys present that immediately following adjournment, 
they were invited to go to the Capitol for the signing of HB 3146, which is the DUI Court of Record 
Bill. Ms. Atwood encouraged everyone to join her. Mike Fields followed up by encouraging every-
one to attend also. 
 
No action was taken. 
  
11) NEW BUSINESS NOT KNOWN 24 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING – MIKE FIELDS 
 
None. 
 
12) ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Greg Mashburn and seconded by Kevin Buchanan to adjourn the meeting 
at 11:01 a.m. The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Prater, Hunter, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 



JAG Board Police Chief Representative 

3 names submitted from Chief Phil Cotton (ret.), OACP: 

1) Chief Investigator George Haralson, Board of Dentistry.  He is currently the Vice-President of 

OACP and worked many years at the Tulsa PD and Tulsa County Sheriff’s Office as well as being 

the Chief of Police of Miami, OK.  He was Chief Chuck Foley’s designee on the JAG Board. 

*OACP would like Mr. Haralson to continue to serve on the JAG Board as its representative. 

2) Chief Don Hyde of Calera PD.  Chief Hyde currently serves as the representative for OACP on the 

VAWA Board. 

3) Chief Don Sweger of Guthrie PD.  



 

NFSIA Task Force Sheriff Representative 

Only 1 name was submitted after many attempts by Ray McNair, OSA, to solicit responses of interest.  

Mr. McNair believes that the lack of interest is due to the belief that it is a position in which you must be 

heavily into the forensic science field to understand what is being discussed. 

1) Sheriff Rob Seale, LeFlore County  

 



OkLEIS Timeline 

Solicitation Posted – Tuesday, October 11, 2016 

Questions Due – Thursday, October 20, 2016 (Amendment to answer no later than 10/25) 

Solicitation Closes – Tuesday, November 1, 2016 

Evaluations – Monday, November 7, 2016 (Up to half a day, need whole evaluation team) 

Interviews – Tuesday, November 15, 2016 Interview vendors that proceed from evaluations. Half up to 

whole day depending on number of vendors 

Kick-Off/Pre-Award – Thursday, December 1. 2016, this can have evaluators as well as anybody else DAC 

wishes to participate. It may be done telephonically is necessary. This is where the single selected 

vendor presents their first scope of work for review. 

Award: No later than January 6, 2017. Could be earlier depending on quality of scope of work originally 

presented 

 

 



























































































FY18 District Budget Needs

Budget Totals Total 1 2 3 4

Civil Services $144,011 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Drug Court/Mental health/Veterans ct. $190,935 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Mental Health $73,321 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Prosecutorial Services $10,070,949 $498,900.00 $474,440.00 $388,393.00 $356,610.00

Supervision Services $202,082 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Victim Services $107,501 $0.00 $55,086.00 $0.00 $0.00

M&O $411,295 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Budget-DAC $272,190 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Totals $11,472,284 $498,900.00 $529,526.00 $388,393.00 $356,610.00

2 1 3

1 3.67 1

1 1

1

Comments 1 Support Staff 7 Additional staff; 1 victim 2 Additional staff; 1 ADA 5 Additional staff; 1 investi-

Funding to alleviate reliance on comp. clerk with 2 ADA and 4 and 1 investigator. gator, 3 ADA's and 1 Support

civil forfeitures and DPA's support staff for Prosecutorial Increase pay to Staff.

Services.  Increase pay for assist with retaining exp-

other staff to agency average to erienced staff

assist with retaining staff

New Staff $8,762,318 76.4% 61100 443861 178338 356610

Salary Adjustments to Assist with Retaining Staff $1,338,653 11.7% 85665 210055

Local Funding Issues $960,018 8.4% 437800

M&O $11,800 0.1%

Equipment $399,495 3.5%

$11,472,284 100.0% 498900 529526 388393 356610

G:\Exec\Council\Meetings\2016\11-02-16 Meeting\Handouts\Copy of FY18 Budget Request Critical Needs Summary 09-15-2016 (2).xls1 of 7 10/28/2016



FY18 District Budget Needs

Budget Totals Total

Civil Services $144,011

Drug Court/Mental health/Veterans ct. $190,935

Mental Health $73,321

Prosecutorial Services $10,070,949

Supervision Services $202,082

Victim Services $107,501

M&O $411,295

Budget-DAC $272,190

Totals $11,472,284

Comments

New Staff $8,762,318

Salary Adjustments to Assist with Retaining Staff $1,338,653

Local Funding Issues $960,018

M&O $11,800

Equipment $399,495

$11,472,284

5 6 7 8

$0.00 $0.00 $42,900.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$73,321.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$325,944.00 $456,717.00 $1,470,546.00 $154,500.00

$202,082.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$7,595.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$608,942.00 $456,717.00 $1,513,446.00 $154,500.00

3 2 9 1

1 3 8

3 2

7 Additional staff; 1 investigator 5 Additional staff; 2 ADA  19 Additional staff; 9 ADA's 1 ADA 

for MH, DC, VC.,  2 Invest. and 3 support staff for Prosecutorial Services. Salary compensation adjustments

1 support staff for Supervision Increased pay for other staff to 8 support staff, 2 Investigators to assist with retaining staff.

Services.  3 ADA's for Prose. assist with retaining experienced Amount to cover county funding

Services.  Computers for all employees. shortfall.

601347 419397 1470546 82500

37320 72000

42900

7595

608942 456717 1513446 154500

G:\Exec\Council\Meetings\2016\11-02-16 Meeting\Handouts\Copy of FY18 Budget Request Critical Needs Summary 09-15-2016 (2).xls2 of 7 10/28/2016



FY18 District Budget Needs

Budget Totals Total

Civil Services $144,011

Drug Court/Mental health/Veterans ct. $190,935

Mental Health $73,321

Prosecutorial Services $10,070,949

Supervision Services $202,082

Victim Services $107,501

M&O $411,295

Budget-DAC $272,190

Totals $11,472,284

Comments

New Staff $8,762,318

Salary Adjustments to Assist with Retaining Staff $1,338,653

Local Funding Issues $960,018

M&O $11,800

Equipment $399,495

$11,472,284

9 10 11 12

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$197,770.00 $157,000.00 $153,000.00 $232,325.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$8,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$206,070.00 $157,000.00 $153,000.00 $232,325.00

1 1 1

1 2

2

2

3 Additional staff; 1 ADA 2 Additional staff; 1 support staff Increased pay for staff to assist 5 Additional staff; 2 support staff,

and 2 legal interns in Pros. and 1 ADA in Pros. Services. with retaining staff. 2 investigators and 1 ADA

Services.  Increased pay for other Add'l funding to offset in Pros. Services.

staff to assist with retaining.  Add'l continued revenue decreases

funds for insurance and leave, from cuts to state appropriations.

new server.

113000 157000 232325

44694 58000

40076 95000

8300

206070 157000 153000 232325

G:\Exec\Council\Meetings\2016\11-02-16 Meeting\Handouts\Copy of FY18 Budget Request Critical Needs Summary 09-15-2016 (2).xls3 of 7 10/28/2016



FY18 District Budget Needs

Budget Totals Total

Civil Services $144,011

Drug Court/Mental health/Veterans ct. $190,935

Mental Health $73,321

Prosecutorial Services $10,070,949

Supervision Services $202,082

Victim Services $107,501

M&O $411,295

Budget-DAC $272,190

Totals $11,472,284

Comments

New Staff $8,762,318

Salary Adjustments to Assist with Retaining Staff $1,338,653

Local Funding Issues $960,018

M&O $11,800

Equipment $399,495

$11,472,284

13 14 15 16

$101,111.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $125,935.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$270,263.00 $296,564.00 $529,767.00 $202,000.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $52,415.00 $0.00 $0.00

$156,900.00 $0.00 $69,200.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$528,274.00 $474,914.00 $598,967.00 $202,000.00

1 4 2 1

2 4 1

2 1 1

1 1

3 Additional staff 7 Additional staff that include 8 Additional staff 3 Additional staff; 1 support staff

1 ADA for Civil and County 4 ADA's, 2 Support Staff and 2 ADA, 1 Investigator, 4 Support 1 ADA and 1 investigator for

2 Investigators for Pros. 1 Victim Advocate Staff, 1 Victim Compensation investigations. 

Increased pay for other New computers, furniture, vehicles,

staff to assist with retaining staff. supplies

Vehicle replacement $140,000

High Speed Internet Access $5,000

253431 474914 529767 202000

117943

5000 6800

151900 62400

528274 474914 598967 202000

G:\Exec\Council\Meetings\2016\11-02-16 Meeting\Handouts\Copy of FY18 Budget Request Critical Needs Summary 09-15-2016 (2).xls4 of 7 10/28/2016



FY18 District Budget Needs

Budget Totals Total

Civil Services $144,011

Drug Court/Mental health/Veterans ct. $190,935

Mental Health $73,321

Prosecutorial Services $10,070,949

Supervision Services $202,082

Victim Services $107,501

M&O $411,295

Budget-DAC $272,190

Totals $11,472,284

Comments

New Staff $8,762,318

Salary Adjustments to Assist with Retaining Staff $1,338,653

Local Funding Issues $960,018

M&O $11,800

Equipment $399,495

$11,472,284

17 18 19 20

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$290,184.00 $131,094.00 $135,747.00 $186,885.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $24,700.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$290,184.00 $131,094.00 $138,747.00 $211,585.00

1 1 1

1 1 2 2

2

3 Additional staff;  1 ADA, 1 SS Bring ADA from PT to FT 3 Additional staff; 1 ADA and 2

1 ADA, 1 support staff and Salary adjustment to retain 2 PT Support Staff support staff

2 investigator for Pros. valuable experienced employees. Add'l funds for salary adjust. Add'l funds for salary adjust.

Services. to assist with retaining staff to assist with retaining staff

Computer for new SS - $3000 Computers for staff 

290184 101594 18956 163145

29500 116791 23740

3000 24700

290184 131094 138747 211585

G:\Exec\Council\Meetings\2016\11-02-16 Meeting\Handouts\Copy of FY18 Budget Request Critical Needs Summary 09-15-2016 (2).xls5 of 7 10/28/2016



FY18 District Budget Needs

Budget Totals Total

Civil Services $144,011

Drug Court/Mental health/Veterans ct. $190,935

Mental Health $73,321

Prosecutorial Services $10,070,949

Supervision Services $202,082

Victim Services $107,501

M&O $411,295

Budget-DAC $272,190

Totals $11,472,284

Comments

New Staff $8,762,318

Salary Adjustments to Assist with Retaining Staff $1,338,653

Local Funding Issues $960,018

M&O $11,800

Equipment $399,495

$11,472,284

21 22 23 24

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$65,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$286,406.00 $463,115.00 $123,499.00 $258,552.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$351,406.00 $463,115.00 $123,499.00 $258,552.00

1 2 1 1

3 1 2

1

1 Additional staff; ADA for 6 Additional staff; 2 ADA, 2 Additional staff; 1 ADA, 1 sup. 3 Additional staff

alternative courts. 3 support staff, 1 investigator 1 ADA, 2 SS

Add'l funds for salary adjust.

to assist with retaining staff

65000 463115 123499 258552

286406

351406 463115 123499 258552

G:\Exec\Council\Meetings\2016\11-02-16 Meeting\Handouts\Copy of FY18 Budget Request Critical Needs Summary 09-15-2016 (2).xls6 of 7 10/28/2016



FY18 District Budget Needs

Budget Totals Total

Civil Services $144,011

Drug Court/Mental health/Veterans ct. $190,935

Mental Health $73,321

Prosecutorial Services $10,070,949

Supervision Services $202,082

Victim Services $107,501

M&O $411,295

Budget-DAC $272,190

Totals $11,472,284

Comments

New Staff $8,762,318

Salary Adjustments to Assist with Retaining Staff $1,338,653

Local Funding Issues $960,018

M&O $11,800

Equipment $399,495

$11,472,284

25 26 27 DAC

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$220,000.00 $475,728.00 $1,335,000.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$30,000.00 $111,600.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $272,190.00

$250,000.00 $587,328.00 $1,335,000.00 $272,190.00

2 2 5.5

1 1 5

1 2

1

3

3 Additional staff; 2 ADA, 1 sup. 5 Additional staff; 2 ADA, 1 sup. 12.5 Additional staff; 5.5 ADA, Budget Officer

staff staff, 1 investigator and 1 RAD 5 support staff, 2 investigators Public Info. Officer

Additional funds for veh. coordinator for Pros. Services Add'l funds for salary adjust. Receptionist

replacement and salary adj. Add'l funds for salary adjust. to assist with retaining staff CS Funding Replaced

for current staff to assist with to assist with retaining staff

retaining experienced staff Computers and Vehicles

170000 375728 942055 214354

50000 100000 392945

57836

30000 111600

250000 587328 1335000 272190

G:\Exec\Council\Meetings\2016\11-02-16 Meeting\Handouts\Copy of FY18 Budget Request Critical Needs Summary 09-15-2016 (2).xls7 of 7 10/28/2016







IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF 
THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA SITTING IN AND FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY 

 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S NARRATIVE REPORT 

For Sentences Exceeding Two Years 
 

19 O.S. § 215.39 

 
   TO: Director 
    Lexington A&R Center 
DATE:  05/13/2015   PO Box 260 
     Lexington, OK  73051 
CASE NO: Test Case 17 
DEFENDANT: JohnTest Test 
  

TO: Administrator 
 Pardon & Parole Board 
 2915 N. Classen Blvd., Suite 405 
 Oklahoma City, Ok 73106 
  

SSN: ***-**-9999 
DOB: 12/31/1970   
 
OFFENSE: Count 1: ROBBERY SECOND DEGREE, a FELONY, 21 O.S. § 799 

   
SENTENCE(S): Count 1: Life Sentence  
   

 
DOCKET:  (Pardon & Parole Board Use Only) 

LOCATION:  
 
This charge included: 
 
__ Plea Agreement  __ Use of Weapon  __ Use of  Alcohol/Drugs  
__ Jury Trial  __ Injury to Victim   at Time of Incident  
__ Court Trial  __ Property Loss   
__ Guilty Plea on  __ Restitution Ordered __ Narcotic/Marijuana 
 Original Charge   $_______________  Offense in the  
         Amount of _______ 
__ Guilty Plea on  __ Financial Loss   __ Prior Arrests 
 Lesser Charge   Claimed by Victim  Number of Prior 
     $_________________  Felonies_________ 
 
As part of your continuing duty to present the state’s case, you are required to provide the following 
information: 
 
        This offense was not unusual in any way and contained only circumstances commonly associated with 

the offense for which the defendant was convicted. 
 
        The following narrative describes the state’s version of this offense and any factors which might 

enhance or diminish the gravity of the offender’s conduct. 
 

See Attached “Exhibit A” 
 
 DATED this ______ day of October, 2016. 
 
 KEVIN D. BUCHANAN 
 DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
 
 
 By: ______________________________ 
 Lenard Ames  
 Assistant District Attorney 
  



IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF 
THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA SITTING IN AND FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY 

 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S NARRATIVE REPORT 

For Sentences Exceeding Two Years 
 

19 O.S. § 215.39 
 

Exhibit A 



IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF 
THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA SITTING IN AND FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY 

 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S NARRATIVE REPORT 

For Sentences Exceeding Two Years 
 

19 O.S. § 215.39 
 

 

Date:  04/10/2015 
Case Number: CF-2014-TEST 
Defendant: Marshall Tester Edwards 
SSN: ***-**-5555 
DOB: June, 1966 

TO: Administrator 
 Pardon & Parole Board 
             2915 N. Classen Blvd., Suite 405 
             Oklahoma City, Ok 73106 
TO: Director, Lexington A&R Center 
 PO Box 260 
 Lexington, OK  73051 
 

 DOC #:___________________________ 
(For Pardon and Parole Board use only) 

 
OFFENSE:  

Count 1: UNLAWFUL USE OF COMMUNICATION FACILITY, a FELONY, 13 O.S. § 176.3(8) 
Count 2: POSSESSION OF CONTROLLED DANGEROUS SUBSTANCE, a FELONY, 63 O.S. § 2-402 
 

SENTENCE(S):  
Count 1: 7 years  
 

This charge included: 
 
__ Plea Agreement  __ Use of Weapon  __ Use of  Alcohol/Drugs  
__ Jury Trial  __ Injury to Victim   at Time of Incident  
__ Court Trial  __ Property Loss   
__ Guilty Plea on  __ Restitution Ordered __ Narcotic/Marijuana 
 Original Charge   $_______________  Offense in the  
         Amount of _______ 
__ Guilty Plea on  __ Financial Loss   __ Prior Arrests 
 Lesser Charge   Claimed by Victim  Number of Prior 
     $_________________  Felonies_________ 
 

 
The District Attorney Narrative Report is the only opportunity to provide a perspective from the District 
Attorney for consideration by the Pardon and Parole Board. Pursuant to 19 O.S. § 215.39(A), the 
District Attorney is required to provide the following information: 
 
1. Written narrative report describing the commission of the offense; and  
2. Any Factors which might enhance or diminish the gravity of the offender’s conduct. 

 

DA NARRATIVE REPORT (Continuing or additional information can be provided in Exhibit A) 

 

 

 

  



Exhibit A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATED this  October 04, 2016. 
 
 KEVIN D. BUCHANAN 
 DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
 
 
 By: ______________________________ 
 Russ Cochran  
 Assistant District Attorney 



ATTORNEY CLIENT PRIVILEGE COMMUNICATION
DO NOT DISSEMINATE

STATUS REPORT
 
DATE: October 11, 2016
TO: Julie Corley, Kari Hawkins, Suzanne McClain Atwood 
FROM: Kindy Jones 
RE: Lester v. DHS, DAC     
Case No.: CJ-16-1133 (Cleveland County)
AAG ASSIGNMENT: Kari Hawkins
PLAINTIFF(S) COUNSEL:  Stan Ward

BRIEF STATEMENT OF THE FACTS:  Plaintiff was employed by the District Attorney for
District No. 12.  She worked in the Child Support Division of the office, which had contract with
DHS to provide these services.  As a result of the budget crisis, DHS terminated its contract with the
DA’s office and plaintiff lost her job.  She claims she was subjected to a reduction-in-force and did
not receive the benefits.  Plaintiff’s employment was terminated by DA Greg Mashburn on June 30,
2016.
 
STATEMENT OF THE CASE: On September 30, 2016, Plaintiff filed this action against DHS and
DAC, neither of which were her employer.    Plaintiffs seeks a declaratory judgment declaring that
she is entitled to benefits pursuant to the State Government Reduction-in-Force and Severance
Benefits Acts and that “defendants” denied her these benefits.  She claims that by denying her
benefits, defendants also violated state labor laws and are therefore liable for double wages, costs and
attorney fees.  Kari Hawkins will provide representation.  

DEFENDANT(S) POSITION: All defenses will be explored and asserted.  DAC is not and was not
plaintiff’s employer.  Plaintiff has no cause of action against DAC.  Her employer is DA District 21. 
  
ANTICIPATED COSTS: Unknown

DAMAGES:         Unspecified.   

OTHER INSURANCE:  Unknown
A SETTLEMENT  OR JUDGEMENT WILL NOT BE PAID WITHOUT THE INFORMATION
REQUESTED IN THIS SECTION.) 
SYNOPSIS OF SIGNIFICANT DEPOSITIONS AND EVALUATION OF WITNESSES:   N/A

LIKELIHOOD OF SETTLEMENT:    NA

1























 



Suzanne McClain Atwood

Executive Coordinator (0289) 22000001
Annie Daniel

Executive Assistant 

(0185) 22000004

Elizabeth Base

Resource 

Prosecutor

(1673) 22000032

Charles Sifers

Traffis Safety Resource 

Prosecutor

(1673) 22000572

Larue Starr

Application Support 

Analyst (9205) 

22000020

Brandi Davison

Conference and 

Education Specialist

(4715)

22000005

Tamara Hudgins

Coordinated 

Community 

Response Specialist

(0082) 22001289

Raquel Razien

Victim Services 

Training Assistant

(0082)

22000841

Training and 

Outreach

Receptionist (0082)  

22000628 

Christiana Burgess

22000962

Veronica Kornegay  

Finance Clerk (9276) 

22000035

Claudia Romero

File Clerk (0082) 

22000008

Maxine Lane

Finance Clerk (9276) 

22000031

Meagan Blan

Board Claims Examiner 

(0065) 22000007

Jacob Charries

Procurement Officer 

(3821)              

22000998

Amy Bruce

HR Officer (0669)  

22001355

Chela Nalls

VOCA Administrative 

Assistant (0082)            

22001007

Timothy "Bud" 

Webster

Director (4966) 

22000027

Victims Services

ReJeania Tolliver

Administrative Claims 

Examiner

(0082) 22000627

Carla Merritt

Accounting Manager 

(9302)           22000518

Suzanne Breedlove

Director (4966) 22000009

Federal Grants Finance

Jaime Yahner

 VOCA Programs Monitor 

(0065)                 22000033

Kenny Dunn

Network Technician (9205) 

22000003

Richard Russell

Network Technician 

(9205)           

22000036

Ribin Mathew

Application Support 

Analyst

(9205) 22000038

Vincent Wharton

Systems Admininstrator

(9205)

22000024

David Bebber

Director (4966) 

22000006

 Stephanie Lowery

Director (4966) 

22000013

IT

Tina Harman

Public Information Officer

(4715) 22000016

Eric Sowder

Insurance 

Coordinator (0295)           

22000021

Valerie Stephens

Sexual Assault & 

Restitution Recov. 

Specialist (4090) 

22000026

Michael Weaver

Lead Network Technician 

(9205) 22000002

Ben Hanneman

Financial Manager 

(9220)            22000018

Jerry George

Grant Programs 

Specialist (5170) 

22000022

Network Admin. 

(9205)             

22000036

Albert Lowes

Database Admin. 

(9205)           

22000025

Meagan Conway

Director

(4759) 22000367

Robin Frank

VOCA Programs 

Monitor

 (0082) 22000589

 Tyler Phillips

Systems Administrator 

(9205) 22000012

Larry Snyder

Internal Applications 

Programmer/Analyst 

(9205) 22000037

Glenda M. Naylor         

Accountant (9220)                    

22000019

Sandra Thompson

VOCA Programs 

Monitor (0082) 22000589

Trent Baggett

Assistant Executive 

Coordinator (4759) 22000028

 Grant Programs 

Specialist (5170) 

22000010

Laura Russell

Grant Programs 

Specialist (4090) 

22000598












































